
 
CITY OF BRUNSWICK 

601 Gloucester Street * Post Office Box 550 * Brunswick * Georgia * 31520-0550 * (912) 267-5500 * Fax (912) 267-5549 
 

Cosby H. Johnson, Mayor                        City Attorney 
Julie T. Martin, Mayor Pro Tem                      Brian D. Corry 
John A. Cason III, Commissioner                      
Felicia M. Harris, Commissioner                                                                                                                              City Manager 
Kendra L. Rolle, Commissioner                Regina M. McDuffie 
                                                         
      

www.brunswickga.org  
AN EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER 

 

AGENDA 
*** 

BRUNSWICK CITY COMMISSION  
REGULAR SCHEDULED COMMISSION MEETING 

WEDNESDAY, FEBRUARY 1, 2023 AT 6:00 P.M. 
1229 NEWCASTLE STREET, 2nd FLOOR 

& 
STREAMED LIVE AT THE BELOW WEB ADDRESS: 

https://www.facebook.com/citybwkga 
 
 

CALL TO ORDER **INVOCATION **PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
1. Adoption of February 1, 2023 Regular Meeting Agenda.  
PUBLIC HEARING(S) – ALCOHOL LICENSE (A. Brown) 
2. 

New Alcohol License(s) 
Name of 
Business 

Business 
Owner/Manager 

Business Address Permit Type 

A & S Market Owner: Smitkumar Patel 1001 1st Ave., Bwk., GA Retail sales of beer and wine 
Solar 108 Owner: Darshan Patel 1008 Bay St., Bwk., GA Retail sales of beer and wine 

ITEM(S) TO CONSIDER FOR APPROVAL 
3. Consider Approval of January 18, 2023 Regular Scheduled Meeting Minutes.  (subject to any necessary 
     changes.)  (N. Atkinson) (Encl. 1) 
4. Consider Approval of a Supplemental Agreement to the Project Framework Agreement Between the  
    Georgia Department of Transportation and the City of Brunswick for Additional Funding for the  
    Engineering and Design Phase of the Boardwalk Trail Project.  (G. Alberson) (Encl. 2) 
5. Consider Approval of Resolution No. 2023-03 ~ Authorizing Application of a Coastal Incentive Grant  
    from the Georgia Department of Natural Resources and to Commit the City of Brunswick Resources as a  
    Local Match.  (G. Alberson) (Encl. 3) 
6. Consider Approval of an Agreement with Structor Group for Replacement of Window Units and HVAC  
    Units in all the Residential Spaces of St. Marks Towers Senior Residential Facility.  (G. Alberson)  
    (Encl. 4) 
 

http://www.brunswickga.org/
https://www.facebook.com/citybwkga


Page 2 
February 1, 2023 
Brunswick City Commission Agenda 
 
 
7. Consider Approval of a Contract with Woodard Construction Company, Inc. for Construction of the  
    Macon-Talmadge Intersection Drainage Improvements Project ~ to improve Storm Drainage Conditions  
    at the Intersection of Macon Avenue and Talmadge Avenue and the Surrounding Area.  (G. Alberson)       
    (Encl. 5) 
EXECUTIVE SESSION  



  

OFFICIAL MINUTES  
BRUNSWICK CITY COMMISSION  
REGULAR SCHEDULED MEETING 
WEDNESDAY, JANUARY 18, 2023 

 AT 6:00 P.M.  
1229 NEWCASTLE STREET, 2nd FLOOR 

& 
STREAMED LIVE AT THE BELOW WEB ADDRESS: 

https://www.facebook.com/citybwkga 
 
PRESENT:  Honorable Mayor Cosby Johnson, Mayor Pro-Tem Julie Martin, Commissioner 
                       John Cason III, Commissioner Felicia Harris, and Commissioner Kendra Rolle    
CALL TO ORDER:  Mayor Johnson - meeting began at 6:00 p.m. 
 
INVOCATION: Pastor Troy Moody, Kingdom Builders Church 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Recited in unison by all in attendance 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
1. Adoption of January 18, 2023 Regular Meeting Agenda.  
    Mayor Pro Tem Martin made a motion to adopt the above-referenced agenda; seconded by   
    Commissioner Harris.  Motion passed unanimously. 
ANNOUNCEMENT 
2. Appointment made to Brunswick Housing Authority. (Mayor) 
    Mayor Johnson announced his appointment of W. Clement Cullens to the above-referenced      
    Authority filling the unexpired term of Shemeka Sorrells.  
UPDATE(S)  
3. 2023 Comprehensive Plan.  (J. Hunter) 
    Planning Development and Codes Director Hunter gave a brief overview of the above-referenced  
    plan. 
    Following questions and responses; Mayor Johnson opened floor for Public Hearing. 
PUBLIC HEARING(S) - 2023 Comprehensive Plan 
    Mayor Johnson opened the following to the public for comments regarding the 2023  
    Comprehensive Plan. 
 
    No one came forth to address the commission. 
      
    Commissioner Cason made a motion to initiate the Comprehensive Plan update process and  
    designate the Planning and Appeals Commission as the Planning Steering Committee and tasked  
    the Planning and Appeal Commission with implementing recommendations for a Stakeholder     
    Committee; seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Martin.  Motion passed unanimously. 
 

https://www.facebook.com/citybwkga


2 
 

ITEM(S) TO CONSIDER FOR APPROVAL 
4. Consider Approval of January 4, 2023 Regular Scheduled Meeting Minutes.  (subject to any  
    necessary changes.)  (N. Atkinson)  
   Mayor Pro Tem Martin made a motion to approve the above-referenced minutes; seconded by  
   Commissioner Harris.  Motion passed unanimously. 
5. Consider Approval of Resolution No. 2023-02 ~ Homelessness Prevention Assistance Program.            
    (R. McDuffie/T. Hamilton) 
    Mayor Pro Tem Martin made a motion to approve the above-referenced resolution and the  
    Memorandum of Understanding as presented; seconded by Commissioner Harris.  Motion passed  
    by a vote of 4 to 1 with Commissioner Rolle abstaining. 
     
    City Manager McDuffie was directed to provide periodic reports/updates of the program to the  
    Commission. 
EXECUTIVE SESSION  
There was not an executive session held during this meeting. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Martin made a motion to adjourn; seconded by Commissioner Cason.  Motion 
passed unanimously. 

MEETING ADJOURNED – meeting adjourned at 6:47 p.m. 

 
        /s/Cosby H. Johnson   
        Cosby H. Johnson, Mayor  
Attest: /s/ Naomi D. Atkinson 
            Naomi D. Atkinson 
            City Clerk 



Page | 1 
 

 

SUBJECT: GLYNN AVENUE LINK TRAIL FROM OVERLOOK PARK TO SR 25 
SPUR EAST – SUPPLEMENTAL AGREEMENT FOR ADDITIONAL FUNDING 

 

COMMISSION ACTION REQUESTED ON:             February 1, 2023 

PURPOSE: 

Approval of a supplemental agreement to the Project Framework Agreement between the 
Georgia Department of Transportation and the City of Brunswick for additional funding for the 
engineering and design phase of the Boardwalk Trail project 

HISTORY:  

The City of Brunswick entered a Project Framework Agreement (PFA) with the Georgia 
Department of Transportation in February 2021 to accept grant funds from the Transportation 
Alternatives Program (TAP) for the design of the Glynn Avenue Link Trail from Overlook Park 
to State Route 25 East.  The amount of the original TAP grant was $420,000 and required a 20% 
local match.  The total cost of the design and engineering consultant agreement was $1,159,582. 

FACTS AND ISSUES: 

City of Brunswick staff applied for additional TAP grant funding from GDOT for FY23 for the 
completion of the design phase of the project.  The City received notice in December that the 
additional TAP funds were awarded in the amount of $548,000.  A local match of $137,000 will 
be required for this funding.  Based on the total cost of the engineering agreement, this additional 
funding ($685,000) will allow for completion of the design phase of the project. 

BUDGET INFORMATION: 

The local match requirement of this additional GDOT TAP funding is $137,000.  This amount 
will be paid from SPLOST 22 – Trails and Boardwalks.  The total anticipated revenue of this 
SPLOST category is $3,500,000. 

 

 

 



Page | 2 
 

OPTIONS: 

1. Authorize the Mayor to sign Supplemental Agreement #1 to the Project Framework 
Agreement between GDOT and the City of Brunswick to accept $548,000 in additional 
funding for the design and engineering of the Glynn Avenue Link Trail. 

2. Do not authorize the Mayor to sign Supplemental Agreement #1 to the Project 
Framework Agreement between GDOT and the City of Brunswick to accept $548,000 in 
additional funding for the design and engineering of the Glynn Avenue Link Trail. 

3. Take no action at this time. 

 

DEPARTMENT RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 

Authorize the Mayor to sign Supplemental Agreement #1 to the Project Framework 
Agreement between GDOT and the City of Brunswick to accept $548,000 in additional 
funding for the design and engineering of the Glynn Avenue Link Trail. 

 

DEPARTMENT: Engineering   

 

Prepared by: Garrow Alberson, P.E., Director of Engineering and Public Works 

 

ADMINISTRATIVE COMMENTS: 

 

ADMINISTRATIVE RECOMMENDATION: 

Authorize the Mayor to sign Supplemental Agreement #1 to the Project Framework 
Agreement between GDOT and the City of Brunswick to accept $548,000 in additional 
funding for the design and engineering of the Glynn Avenue Link Trail. 

 

________________________________    ________________________ 

City Manager                                                                              Date                   
      

1/24/23



PI # 0015400 Glynn County 
 

Contract No.: 48400-425-PFAOPD2100952  1 

SUPPLEMENTAL AGREEMENT NO. 1
  

To the PROJECT FRAMEWORK 
AGREEMENT 

By And Between 
GEORGIA DEPARTMENT OF 

TRANSPORTATION 
And 

CITY OF BRUNSWICK 
 

Please indicate which Catalog of Domestic 
Federal Assistance Number (CFDA) applies 
to this agreement (Check only one): 
 

☒ CFDA # 20.205 - 
Highway Planning and 
Construction Cluster  
☐ CFDA # 20.219 - 
Recreational Trails 
Program 

 
This Agreement, made and entered into  

this, _____________________________by and 
between the GEORGIA DEPARTMENT OF 
TRANSPORTATION, an agency of the State of 
Georgia, hereinafter called the 
"DEPARTMENT", and the CITY OF 
BRUNSWICK, GEORGIA, hereinafter called 
the "SPONSOR.” 
 

WHEREAS the DEPARTMENT and 
the SPONSOR heretofore entered into a Project 
Framework Agreement dated, March 3, 2021 
for Contract  ID: 48400-425-
PFAOPD2100952 hereinafter called the 
“ORIGINAL AGREEMENT”, for the purpose 
of having the SPONSOR reimbursed federal 
funds for PI # 0015400, (GLYNN AVE LINK 
TRAIL fm OVERLOOK PARK to SR 25 SPUR 
EAST) (a multi-use trail with 10-ft clear width 
approximately 2,800 LF in total length. 
The trail will begin at Overlook Park and end at 
the existing bicycle/pedestrian trail along SR 25 
Spur East [F.J. Torras Causeway] including 

approximately 2,500 LF of bridge design over marsh 
and tidal areas, with multiple viewing platforms. 
Bridge design will consist of concrete piling 
foundation with superstructure of aluminum, 
composite material, or other material to reduce long-
term maintenance expenses) such work hereinafter 
called the “PROJECT”, and 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE PARTIES  
mutually agree that for and in consideration of the 
mutual benefits to flow from each to the other: 

 
1. The ORIGINAL AGREEMENT, dated 

March 3, 2022 shall be modified as follows: 
Exhibit A dated December 15, 2020, shall be 
deleted in its entirety and replaced the attached Exhibit 
A dated December 8, 2022, Project Financial Report. 

 
2.  All terms and conditions of the 

ORIGINAL AGREEMENT except as modified, 
changed or amended by the Parties, in writing, shall 
remain in full force and effect. 

 
3. The WHEREAS Clauses and Exhibits 

hereto are a part of this Supplemental Agreement 
and are incorporated herein by reference. 
 

4.  The Original Agreement, as amended, 
constitutes the full, complete and entire 
understanding between Parties. 

 
[REMAINDER OF PAGE 

INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK] 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



PI # 0015400 Glynn County 
 

Contract No.: 48400-425-PFAOPD2100952  2 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, said parties have hereunto set their hands and affixed their seals the day 

and year above first written. 
 

 
Georgia Department of Transportation 
 
 
 
 
 
 
BY:        

Commissioner    
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
       
Treasurer 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
City of Brunswick, Georgia 
 
 
 
 
 
BY:        

Cosby H. Johnson 
Mayor 

 
 
Signed, sealed, and delivered this ____________ 
in the presence of: 
 
 
 
 
                                               
Garrow Alberson, Director of Eng. Public Works  
Witness  
  
 
 
 
                                             
Karen Rogers, Administrative Assistant 
Notary Public  
 
  
This Agreement approved by City of Brunswick, 
 
the ___________________________________ . 
     
Attest  
     
 
 
       
Naomi D. Atkinson, City Clerk 
 
 58-6000525     
Federal Employer Identification Number:  



PI # 0015400 Glynn County 
 

Contract No.: 48400-425-PFAOPD2100952  3 

EXHIBIT A 
 

 

  



PI # 0015400 Glynn County 
 

Contract No.: 48400-425-PFAOPD2100952  4 

 
ATTACHMENT A 

BUDGET ESTIMATE 
 

Original Project Framework Agreement 
  

Maximum Federal Share:   $380,000.00 
Local Share:   $95,000.00 
Original Total Agreement Amount:   $475,000.00 

 
 

Supplemental Agreement (SA) No. 1 Amount 
 

SA Federal Supplemental Share:   $548,000.00 

SA Local Participation/Share:   $137,000.00 

Total Supplemental Amount:   $685,000.00 
 
 
 

Composite Amount 
(Original Contract Plus Supplemental Agreement No. 1) 

 
Revised Total Federal Share: $928,000.00 

Local Participation/Share:   $232,000.00 

Revised Total Agreement Amount:   $1,160,000.00 
 

 
 



Page | 1 
 

 

SUBJECT: COASTAL INCENTIVE GRANT APPLICATION  – RETHINKING 
RUNOFF  PLAN – PHASE II 

 

COMMISSION ACTION REQUESTED ON:             February 1, 2023 

PURPOSE: 

Approval of Resolution number 2023-03 to authorize application of a Coastal Incentive Grant 
from the Georgia Department of Natural Resources and to commit City of Brunswick resources 
as a local match  

HISTORY:  

The City of Brunswick has been pursuing a strategy for implementing stormwater green 
infrastructure practices to increase resiliency and address nonpoint source pollution. This 
strategy was first established in the City’s “Rethinking Runoff Plan” that was completed in 
September 2022 and was funded through a Cycle 23 Coastal Incentive Grant (CIG). The 
Rethinking Runoff Plan positioned the City to proactively plan for stormwater management in 
their site design process, provided conceptual designs to garner community support, and supplied 
fundamental information for future implementation of green infrastructure strategies.  

FACTS AND ISSUES: 

In the Rethinking Runoff Plan, 28 sites were identified for green infrastructure/low impact 
development (GI/LID) improvements intended to reduce stormwater runoff and address non-
point source pollution.  Of these 28 sites, three are already in various stages of design and 
construction.  The current CIG-funded project will prioritize the next group of projects for 
detailed design.  The project will include additional site investigations such as soil testing, depth 
to water table, infiltration rates, in-house constructability, and presence of utilities.  The top three 
sites will then have detailed engineering design plans created for either the City to construct in-
house or to include in future grant applications.  With new coastal resiliency implementation 
grants available, the City will be positioned with “shovel-ready” green infrastructure projects. 

All Coastal Incentive Grants also include an education and outreach component as part of the 
scope of the project.   The education and outreach component of the proposed project will be to 
connect with local residents to target residential stormwater management.  Activities for this 
include workshops on residential rain gardens with UGA Marine Extension and Georgia Sea 



Page | 2 
 

Grant and a rain barrel program with GADNR-CRD and UGA.  Several of these types of 
workshops have already been held in various neighborhoods and have shown to be quite 
successful. 

BUDGET INFORMATION: 

The local match portion of this Coastal Incentive Grant will be provided primarily through in-
kind services of the City.  Salaries, wages and fringe benefits will make up the majority of the 
amount required for the local match.  Any cash match will be provided by the City through 
Storm Water Utility FY23 budgeted funds. 

 

OPTIONS: 

1. Authorize the Mayor to sign Resolution Number 2023-03 to approve application for a 
Coastal Incentive Grant and to enter a Project Agreement with the Georgia Department of 
Natural Resources if approved. 

2. Do not authorize the Mayor to sign Resolution Number 2023-03 to approve application 
for a Coastal Incentive Grant and to enter a Project Agreement with the Georgia 
Department of Natural Resources if approved. 

3. Take no action at this time. 

 

DEPARTMENT RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 

Authorize the Mayor to sign Resolution Number 2023-03 to approve application for a 
Coastal Incentive Grant and to enter a Project Agreement with the Georgia Department of 
Natural Resources if approved. 

DEPARTMENT: Engineering   

 

Prepared by: Garrow Alberson, P.E., Director of Engineering and Public Works 

 

ADMINISTRATIVE COMMENTS: 

 

 



Page | 3 
 

ADMINISTRATIVE RECOMMENDATION: 

Authorize the Mayor to sign Resolution Number 2023-03 to approve application for a 
Coastal Incentive Grant and to enter a Project Agreement with the Georgia Department of 
Natural Resources if approved. 

 

 

________________________________    ________________________ 

City Manager                                                                             Date                   
      

1/24/23



Resolution 2023 - 03 

 

State of Georgia 

The City of Brunswick 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF BRUNSWICK BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS TO 
APPLY FOR A COASTAL INCENTIVE GRANT AND COMMIT UPON AWARD OF 
THE GRANT TO ENTER INTO A PROJECT AGREEMENT WITH THE GEORGIA 
DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES COASTAL RESOURCES DIVISION 

 
WHEREAS, the mission of the Coastal Incentive Grant as part of the Georgia Coastal 
Management Program is consistent with goals of City of Brunswick’s Stormwater Management 
Program, and 
 
WHEREAS, the City is committed to better and more sustainably managing stormwater within 
the City limits utilizing green infrastructure techniques, and 
 
WHEREAS, the City is desirous of obtaining a Georgia Department of Natural Resources Coastal 
Incentive Grant to build on its “Rethinking Runoff Plan” to prioritize and advance the designs for 
green infrastructure stormwater management projects identified in that plan, and 
 
WHEREAS, the City is an eligible applicant under the rules of the Coastal Inventive Grant Cycle 
26 Request for Proposals. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City of Brunswick Board of Commissioners, 
 

Does hereby authorize staff to apply for a Coastal Incentive Grant through the Georgia 
Department of Natural Resources Coastal Resources Division.  Upon award of the grant, 
the Board of Commissioners shall enter into a Project Agreement between the Board of 
Commissioners and Georgia Department of Natural Resources Coastal Resources 
Division. 

 
Adopted, the 1st day of February, 2023 
 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
CITY OF BRUNSWICK 

 
 
 
      ___________________________ 

Cosby H. Johnson, Mayor 
 
Attest: _______________________ 
 Naomi Atkinson, Clerk 



Page | 1 
 

 

SUBJECT: ST. MARKS TOWERS – CONSTRUCTION AGREEMENT 
 

COMMISSION ACTION REQUESTED ON:             February 1, 2023 

PURPOSE: 

Approval of an agreement with Structor Group for replacement of window units and HVAC 
units in all of the residential spaces of St. Marks Towers senior residential facility 

HISTORY: 

St. Marks Towers is a non-profit residential facility for low-income senior citizens located east 
of U.S. Highway 17 at the end of Parkwood Avenue.    The facility consists of two, six-story 
structures with a total of 150 one-bedroom apartments.  The north tower was constructed in 
1982, and the south tower was constructed in 1992.  The residents’ rent and utility costs are 
subsidized by funding from the U. S. Department of Housing and Urban Development. 

FACTS AND ISSUES: 

The City received a grant from the Georgia Department of Community Affairs (DCA) in the 
amount of $6 Million for replacement of window units and the HVAC units in each of the 
residential spaces of the towers.  Each residential apartment contains two window units and one 
HVAC unit.  The windows in the stairways and common areas of the buildings will be replaced 
as part of the scope of work also. 

A request for proposals was issued in October 2022, and proposals were received in November.  
Two firms submitted proposals which met the minimum requirements. The pricing of the two 
proposals is as follows: 

 Structor Group - $5,975,000 
 Phillips Construction - $3,446,999 
 
Two additional proposals were received following the submittal deadline listed in the RFP.  
Those proposals were not eligible for consideration, but it is worth noting that the pricing on 
each of those proposals was $6.37 Million and $6.60 Million. 
 
The staff of the Department of Engineering and Public Works evaluated both of the eligible 
proposals and has selected the proposal from Structor Group as the more desirable proposal.  
Both the window and the HVAC products in the Structor proposal are higher quality materials 
and include manufacturers and installation warranties.  Additionally, the Structor proposal 



Page | 2 
 

included a more detailed project schedule with more a more favorable timeline for project 
completion.  Their proposal also listed their experience with past projects of similar size, scope 
and environmental challenges.  The Phillips proposal did not provide sufficient information on 
the products, warranties, or the installation process.  For these reasons, the department 
recommends entering an agreement with Structor Group for the installation of the windows and 
HVAC units. 
 
The contractor is prepared to order materials as soon as the agreement is approved, and begin 
installation upon material delivery.  The project schedule estimates completion within 365 days. 
 

BUDGET INFORMATION: 

The City will receive $6,000,000 in grant funding from DCA with no match required from the 
City.  If the project should exceed the $6,000,000 cost of the grant agreement, any additional 
funding will be provided by DCA.  There will be no cost to the City as part of this project. 

 

OPTIONS: 

1. Authorize the Mayor to sign an agreement with Structor Group in the amount of 
$5,975,000 for window and HVAC replacement at the St. Marks Towers 

2. Do not authorize the Mayor to sign an agreement with Structor Group in the amount of 
$5,975,000 for window and HVAC replacement at the St. Marks Towers  

3. Take no action at this time. 

 

DEPARTMENT RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 

Authorize the Mayor to sign an agreement with Structor Group in the amount of 
$5,975,000 for window and HVAC replacement at the St. Marks Towers 

 

DEPARTMENT: Engineering & Public Works  

 

Prepared by: Garrow Alberson, P.E., Director of Engineering and Public Works 

 

 

 



Page | 3 
 

ADMINISTRATIVE COMMENTS: 

 

ADMINISTRATIVE RECOMMENDATION: 

 

 

 

_______________________________    ________________________ 

City Manager                                                                                      Date                   
      

1/24/23









































































Page | 1 
 

 

SUBJECT: MACON-TALMADGE INTERSECTION DRAINAGE IMPROVEMENTS 
– CONSTRUCTION  

  

COMMISSION ACTION REQUESTED ON:             February 1, 2023 

PURPOSE: 

Approval of a contract with Woodard Construction Company, Inc. for construction of the 
Macon-Talmadge Intersection Drainage Improvements project to improve storm drainage 
conditions at the intersection of Macon Avenue and Talmadge Avenue and the surrounding area. 

HISTORY: 

The area surrounding the intersection of Macon Avenue and Talmadge Avenue provides a link 
between Hwy 17 and the Urbana neighborhood.  The area is a heavily used roadway with a mix 
of commercial and residential properties.  The roadway elevation at the intersection is very low 
compared to the surrounding area.  Additionally, the storm drainage outfalls are set at a low 
elevation and are not equipped with tide control devices.  As a result, tidal flooding is a 
significant problem at this area.  Along with the low topography, the drainage infrastructure in 
this area is severely undersized.  These factors contribute to this area being frequently flooded 
during rainfall events as well as high tide events. 

The City’s Storm Water Master Plan was completed in February 2020.  The plan evaluated 
several areas of town for storm water deficiencies.  After identifying 15 drainage problem areas 
in the City, the plan prioritized these areas in order of importance for projected improvement.  
The prioritization was based on several factors including roadway or building flooding issues, 
undersized or lack of infrastructure, tide control, and maintenance issues.  Following the 
identification and prioritization of the potential projects, the Macon-Talmadge Intersection 
project was listed as the #2 project in need of improvement. 

FACTS AND ISSUES: 

The storm water runoff in this area of the City is collected in storm drain inlets at the intersection 
and conveyed to the east, where it then discharges to the marsh.  The inlets and the pipes at this 
intersection are severely undersized and cannot accommodate the amount of runoff from the 
surrounding developed areas.  Additionally, the outfall elevation is very low compared to the 
adjacent marsh, and the outfalls are not equipped with any kind of tide control devices. 



Page | 2 
 

The intent of this project is to improve the storm drainage by increasing the number and size of 
the storm drain inlets and the size of the drainage pipes in order to more effectively remove the 
storm water runoff from the roadway.  The new outfall will also be fitted with tide control valves 
to prevent the tide water from entering the storm pipes during periods of high tide.  The project 
will also better convey the runoff along the roadside toward the inlets. 

The project design phase included permitting tasks for the project.  The Georgia DNR and US 
Army Corps of Engineers permits have been approved for the improvements to the storm 
drainage outfall.  The GDOT right-of-way encroachment permit has also been approved for 
construction of the drainage improvements within the state right-of-way.  It should be noted that 
GDOT plans to complete the resurfacing of US Highway 17 in the late spring of 2023. 

Following completion of the project design and issuance of the necessary permits, the 
Department of Engineering and Public Works staff advertised the project for construction bids.  
No responses were received from the first advertisement of the project.  One bid was received 
from the second advertisement.  The bid was from Woodard Construction in the amount of 
$3,682,879.20. 

BUDGET INFORMATION: 

This project will be partially funded by SPLOST VI – Storm Drainage.  There is approximately 
$1,450,000 remaining in the SPLOST VI budget.  The remainder of the project (approx. 
$2,230,000)  will be funded from SPLOST 22 – Storm Drainage. 

 

OPTIONS: 

1. Authorize the Mayor to sign a contract with Woodard Construction Company in the 
amount of $3,682,879.20 for construction of the Macon-Talmadge Drainage 
Improvements project. 

2. Do not authorize the Mayor to sign a contract with Woodard Construction Company in 
the amount of $3,682,879.20 for construction of the Macon-Talmadge Drainage 
Improvements project. 

3. Take no action at this time. 

DEPARTMENT RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 

Authorize the Mayor to sign a contract with Woodard Construction Company in the 
amount of $3,682,879.20 for construction of the Macon-Talmadge Drainage 
Improvements project. 

DEPARTMENT: Engineering   

Prepared by: Garrow Alberson, P.E., Director of Engineering and Public Works 



Page | 3 
 

ADMINISTRATIVE COMMENTS: 

ADMINISTRATIVE RECOMMENDATION: 

Authorize the Mayor to sign a contract with Woodard Construction Company in the 
amount of $3,682,879.20 for construction of the Macon-Talmadge Drainage 
Improvements project. 

 

________________________________    ________________________ 

City Manager                                                                                      Date                   
      

1/24/23













City of Brunswick, Georgia 
M-T DRAINAGE IMPROVEMENTS 
NOVEMBER 2022 
 

SECTION 00500 
 
 AGREEMENT 
 

THIS AGREEMENT, made this          day of                              , 2023, by and between the 

City of Brunswick, Georgia  , hereinafter called "OWNER" and Woodard Construction Company, 

Inc., doing business as a for-profit corporation in the State of Georgia, hereinafter called 

"CONTRACTOR".  

WITNESSETH: That for and in consideration of the payments and agreements hereinafter 

mentioned:  

1.  The CONTRACTOR will commence and complete the    MACON-TALMADGE DRAINAGE 

IMPROVEMENTS  PROJECT and all other incidental work required by the Contract Documents 

for a complete project hereinafter called the "WORK".  The “WORK” shall also include 

General and Special Conditions and the price included in the items in the CONTRACT and 

no separate payment will be made for same.    

 2.  The CONTRACTOR will furnish all of the material, supplies, tools, equipment, labor 

and other services necessary for the preparation, demolition and completion of the WORK. 

3.  The CONTRACTOR will commence the work required by the CONTRACT 

DOCUMENTS on the date indicated in the NOTICE TO PROCEED and will complete the 

project in 180 calendar days unless the contract time is extended as provided in the 

General Conditions.  A liquidated damage penalty will be assessed at a unit rate of $1,000 

per day for each day the work exceeds the allotted time unless a written extension request 

and justification for delays are submitted to the City and approved in writing by the City a 

minimum of (30) days prior to the contract deadline. 

 

 



City of Brunswick, Georgia 
M-T DRAINAGE IMPROVEMENTS 
NOVEMBER 2022 
 

4.  The CONTRACTOR agrees to perform all of the Work described in the CONTRACT 

DOCUMENTS and comply with the terms therein for the sum of three million, six hundred 

eighty-two thousand, eight hundred seventy-nine and 20/100 dollars ($3,682,879.20) or as 

shown in the Bid Form (00480).  

5.  The term "CONTRACT DOCUMENTS" means and includes the following:  

00100 Advertisement for Bids  
00200 Instructions to Bidders  
00450 Bid Bond  
00480 Bid Form 
00500 Agreement 
00600 Performance Bond 
00610 Payment Bond 
00615  E-Verify and Oath 
00620 Certificate of City of Brunswick’s Attorney 

 00700 General Conditions  
 01600 Special Conditions 
  
  

 
 

6.   The OWNER will pay to the CONTRACTOR in the manner and at such times as set 

forth in the General Conditions such amounts as required by the CONTRACT 

DOCUMENTS.   Partial pay estimates shall be in accordance with the Supplementary 

Conditions. 

7.   This Agreement shall be binding upon all parties hereto and their respective heirs, 

executors, administrators, successors, and assigns.   

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed, or caused to be executed by 

their duly authorized officials, this Agreement in five (5) counterparts each of which shall be 

deemed an original on the date first above written.  

 

(Signatures on Following Page) 



City of Brunswick, Georgia 
M-T DRAINAGE IMPROVEMENTS 
NOVEMBER 2022 
 

 

 

CITY OF BRUNSWICK: 

BRUNSWICK, GEORIGA     
                                 
BY:           (SEAL) 
        
 
NAME:  Cosby Johnson _________                   
 
Title:    Mayor      ATTEST: 
 
              
         
        Name:       
 
        Title:        
 
 
CONTRACTOR: 
 
      
 
BY:                                                            
 
NAME:                                                    (SEAL)    

               
ADDRESS:        ATTEST: 
 
              
 
        Name:       
 
 
 

 
 
 

END OF SECTION 


	2.1.23 Agenda Packet
	Encl. 1
	Encl. 2
	Encl. 3
	Encl. 4
	Encl. 5

